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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Five Year Financial Review
(not subject to audit)

December 31 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Population (Statistics Canada) 13,163 13,163 13,183 12,385 12,385
Number of Households (MPAC) 5,755 5,654 5,550 5,478 5,321
Taxable Assessment (000's) $ $ $ $ $
Residential and farm 1,788,497 1,691,275 1,616,203 1,518,663 1,418,289
Commercial and industrial 92,044 90,847 84,180 104,208 89,390
Total 1,880,541 1,782,122 1,710,383 1,623,571 1,507,679
Commercial, industrial as % of assessment 4.89% 5.09% 5.51% 6.46% 5.93%
Rates of Taxation
Residential
» for general municipal purposes 0.517954  (0.508051  0.492824 0.489343  0.492008
» for county purposes 0.370048  0.376627 0.373000 0.379779 0.382978
» for school board purposes 0.170000 0.1779000  0.188000 0.125000 0.203000
Total 1.058002 1.084578  1.053824 1.064122 1.087986
Multi-Residential (municipal} 1.109898  1.113514 1.132798 1.141454  1.166452
Commercial (municipal) 0.930695  0.901541 0.840852 0.823141 0.815153
Industrial {(municipal) 1.335026  1.322777  1.285926 1.256043 1.236795
Tax Arrears » parcentage of current levy {<10%)** 7.40% 8.69% 9.81% 10.38% 11.18%
Taxes Transferred (000's)
» County 7,307 7,121 6,744 6,410 6,143
» School Boards 4,149 4,178 4,260 4,103 3,971
Revenues (000's) $ $ $ $ $
+ Taxation and payments in lieu 11,759 11,1566 10,442 8,774 9,309
» Government transfers 2,231 1,870 1,728 1,721 1,487
» Fees and service charges 5,143 4770 4,569 4,719 4,024
» Other 2,921 3,418 1,454 4,416 1,913
» Revenues related to capital assets 2,318 3,209 599 2,014 2,020
Total 24,372 24,423 18,793 22,644 18,753
Expenditures {000's)
» Operations 21,312 19,924 18,745 18,064 16,731
» Amortization 3,192 3,010 2,696 2,652 2,540
Net Financial Assets (Net Debt)
» % of Operating Revenue (>(20%)) ** (24.33%)  (18.45%)  (14.88%)  (18.86%)  (22.57)%
» % of Taxation and User Charges (>(50%)) ** {31.23%) (23.10%)  (18.25%) (23.80%) (29.91%

** Represents the Provincial Low Risk Indicator.
{Note: All dollar amounts are in thousands of dollars.)
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Five Year Financial Review
(not subject to audit)

December 31 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
$ $ $ $ $
Long Term Debt

+ Net long term debt (000's) 16,859 15,646 15,218 14,966 15,754
> Long term debt charges {000's} 1,575 1,406 1,384 1,414 1,243
» Total annual repayment limit (000's) 4,136 3,861 3,763 3.644 3,084
» Long term debt per household 2,929 2,767 2,742 2,732 2,961

» Debt charges (000's)
» user charges 494 490 471 471 350
» tax supported 1,081 916 913 943 803

1,575 1,408 1,384 1,414 1,243

Municipal Equity (000's)

» Surplus and Reserves 9,229 8,155 7,785 6,827 5,837
» Invested in capital assets 55,184 53,274 50,192 50,573 49,783
» Equity in MRPC, ORPC, ORES 6,635 8,55% 5,573 6,104 6,017
» Reserves as % of operating expenses (>20%) ** 43.30%  40.90%  41.20%  37.60%  37.08%
» Asset consumption ratio 34.51%  34.83% 34.98% 33.10% 32.97%

Financial Indicators
» Sustainability

» financial assets to liabilities 0.7837 0.8399 0.8734 0.8398 0.8250
» financial assets to liabilities
» capital reserves to accumulated amortization 15.80%  14.60% 15.00% 13.54% 11.80%
» debt to tangible capital assets 22.11% 21.85% 22.99% 22.39% 24.09%
» Flexibility

» Debt charges to total

operating revenue (<5%) bl 7.26% 7.05% 7.52% 7.87% 7.43%
» Total operating revenue to taxable assessment 1.15% 1.12% 1.08% 1.10% 1.11%

» Working capital to operating expenses (>10%}) ** 54.33% 80.10% 66.56% 64.15% 71.58%

» Vulnerability
» Total government transfers
» to total revenues 13.45% 13.97% 11.82% 11.45% 10.37%




CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MESS!SSIPF’I MILLS
3131 OLD PERTH RCAD = PO BOX 4006 « RR2 ¢ ALMONTE ON e KOA 1AQ

PHONE: 5613-256-2064
FAX: 613-256-4887
WEBSITE: www. mississippimills.ca

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying censolidated financial statemenis of the Corporaticn of the Municipality of
Mississippi Mills are the responsibility of the Municipality’s management and have been prepared
in compliance with legislation, and in accordance with Canadian Public Secior Accounting
Standards. A summary of significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements. The preparation of consolidated financial statements
necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's judgement, particularly when
transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with certainty until future
periods.

The Municipality's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and
recorded in compliance with iegislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial
information is available on a timely basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements.
These systems are monitored and evaluated by management.

Council meets with management and the external auditors o review the consolidated financial
statements and discuss any significant financial reporting or internal control matters prior to
Council approval of the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Allan and Partners LLP, independent
external auditors appointed by the Municipality. The accompanying Auditor's Report outlines theit
responsibilities, the scope of their examination and thair opinion on the Municipality’s consolidated
financial statements.

Rhonda Whitmarsh, CPA, CA
Chief Administrative Officer Treasurer
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22 Wilson Street West | Perth, Ontario | K7H 2M9

Phone: 613-267-6580 | Fax: 613-267-7563

info@allanandpartners.com
www.allanandpartners.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills:

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippt
Mills (the "Entity’}, which comprise:

the consolidated statemént of financial position as at December 31, 2018;

the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in net debt for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

* and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of sngmf;cant accounting
policies;

(Hereinafter referred to as the ‘financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Entity as at December 31, 2018, and its consolidated results of
operations, its consolidated changes in net debt and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Ganadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the

Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our auditor's report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Canada and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements.

We helieve that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disciosing as applicable, matters relatedto going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and toissue an auditor's report thatincludes
our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. :

We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity's internal contral.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.



Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and evenis
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audi.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation of the entities or
business activities within the group Entity to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Allan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Perth, Ontario
June 4, 2019.



Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2018 2017

$ 5
ASSETS

Financial Assets

Cash and short term deposits 8,740,890 8,291 588
Taxes receivable (net of allowance of $34,900) 1,683,427 1,916,034
User charges receivable 495,238 859,057
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of $27,453) 1,518,478 1,591,048
Inventory for resale 26,099 48,089
Long term receivables {note 7} 23,809 35,385
Investment in Ottawa River Power Corporation (note 6) 2,297,185 2,179,451
Investment in Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc. (note 6) 322,018 312,289
Investment in Mississippi River Power Corporation {note 6) 4,015,817 4,067,316

19,122,961 19,300,267

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,369,891 2,633,083
Prepaid property taxes 1,236,605 1,181,733
Accrued landfill closure and post closure 831,179 816,179
Other current liabilities 1,082,906 922,736
Deferred revenues (note 5) 2,022,539 1,779,937
Long term liabilities (note 7) 16,858,508 15,645,860

24,401,628 22,979,528

NET DEBT (5,278,667) (3,679,261)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets (note 16) 76,263,211 71,609,587
Inventories 63,647 58,226
76,326,858 71,667,813

Contingent Liabilities (note 13)

MUNICIPAL EQUITY {(note 8) 71,048,191 67,988,552

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills

Consolidated Statement of Operations

(Note 18)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
REVENUES
Taxation » residential 9,140,497 9,138,740 8,587,354
» commercial 888,328 883,985 851,767
» other governments 238,185 238,746 245,757
» garbage collection and local improvements 1,461,852 1,497,384 1,471,428
User charges » sewer and water 2,936,685 3,217,878 2,944,092
» recreation and culture 520,715 508,448 589,975
» daycare 919,000 1,096,058 898,752
» other 184,875 320,635 337,418
Government transfers 1,648,481 2,230,767 1,869,862
Licences and permits 424,353 636,328 596,294
Deferred revenues earned (note 5) 378,347 378,347 380,947
Investment income 90,000 121,749 89,391
Penalties and interest on taxes 280,000 241,807 238,087
Provincial offenses 100,000 122,643 84,540
Other 521,400 1,066,477 761,200
Net income » Ottawa River Power Corporation -—- 162,046 90,483
» Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc. 17,699 17,888
» Mississippi River Power Corporation 173,501 1,159,638
TOTAL REVENUES 19,732,718 22,053,238 21,214,873
EXPENDITURES
General government 2,101,984 2,234,875 1,676,802
Protection to persons and property 3,413,121 3,419,250 3,260,148
Transportation services 4,735,281 4,667,455 4,448,937
Environmental services 5,998,204 5,750,718 5,604,352
Social and family services 1,637,282 1,756,252 1,658,660
Recreation and culiural services 2,953,692 2,900,936 2,739,047
Planning and development 504,689 582,579 535,682
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 21,344,253 21,312,085 18,923,628
NET REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
FROM OPERATIONS {1,611,535) 741,173 1,291,245
OTHER
Grants and transfers related to capital
Deferred revenuss earned (note 5) 530,382 756,687 941,492
Government transfers 665,870 688,277 1,365,816
Other 216,361 177,009 215,310
Contributed assets - 696,493 686,233
1,412,613 2,318,466 3,208,851
ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT}) (198,922) 3,056,639 4,500,096
MUNICIPAL EQUITY, BEGINNING OF YEAR 67,988,552 67,988,552 63,488,456
MUNICIPAL EQUITY, END OF YEAR 67,789,630 71,048,191 67,988,552

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Debt

{Note 18)

For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $

ANNUAL SURPLUS {DEFICIT) (198,922) 3,052,639 4,500,096
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,248,533 3,192,267 3,009,880
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (9,252,896) (8,011,581} (8,444,974)
Disposal of tangible capital assets 165,690 (4,4986)
Acquisition of supplies inventories - {5,421) -
(6,004,363) (4,659,045) (5,439,590)

INCREASE IN NET DEBT (8,203,285) {1,599,406) (939,494}
NET DEBT, BEGINNING OF YEAR {3,679,261) (3,679,261) (2,739,767)
NET DEBT, END OF YEAR (9,882,546} {5,278,667) (3,679,261)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended Becember 31 2018 2017
$ $
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus for the year 3,059,639 4,500,096
Non cash changes » amortization 3,192,267 3,009,880
6,251,906 7,509,976
Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital Balances

Taxes receivable 232,607 153,631
User charges receivable 363,819 {71,144}
Accounts receivable 72,570 {792,132)
Inventory for resale 21,990 88,733
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (263,192) 873,555
Prepaid property taxes 54,872 31,025
Accrued landfill closure and post closure 15,000 15,000
Other current liabilities 160,170 (54,915}
Deferred revenues 242,602 40,421
Inventories (5,421} (4,496)
Long term receivables 11,586 13,976
906,603 283,654

Working Capital from Operations 7,158,509 7,803,630

CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,011,581) (8,444,974)
Disposal of capital assets 165,690 —
Net investment in tangible capital assets (7,845,891) (8,444,974)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Increase in investment in Ottawa River Power Corporation {117,734) {48,168}
Increase in investment in Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc. (9,729} (5,692)
Decrease (increase) in investment in Mississippi River Power Corporation 51,489 (934,638)
Net decrease in cash from investing acfivities (75,964) (986,498)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Debt issued for Municipality purposes 2,182,500 1,268,000
Debt principal repayments (969,852) {837,929)
Net increase in cash from financing activities 1,212,648 430,071
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH 449,302 (1,197,771}
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,291,588 9,489,359
CASH, END OF YEAR 8,740,890 8,291,588

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

1.  Status of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills

The Municipality of Mississippi Mifls {the ‘Municipality') was incorporated January 1, 1998 (being an
amalgamation of the former Town of Almonte and Townships of Ramsay and Pakenham) and
assumed its responsibilities under the authority of the Minister of Municipal Affairs and the Municipal
Act. The Municipality operates as a lower tier government in the County of Lanark, in the Province
of Ontario, Canada and provides municipal services such as police, fire, public works, planning, parks
and recreation, library and other general government operations.

2, Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills are the
representations of management and have besn prepared in all material respects in accordance with
Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards. Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted
by the Municipality are as follows:

Reporting Entity

(i) The consolidated financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenditures, reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the
Municipality. The reporting entity is comprised of all organizations, committees and local boards
accountable for the administration of their financial affairs and resources to the Municipality and
which are owned or controlled by the Municipality. Interdepartmental and inter-organizational
transactions and balances between these organizations are eliminated. These consolidated
financial statements include:

» Public Library Board
» Community Services Committes
» Day Care Centre

The Ottawa River Power Corporation, Mississippi River Power Corporation and the Ottawa River
Energy Solutions Inc. are accounted for on a modified equity basis, consistent with Canadian
generally accepted accounting treatment for government business enterprises. Under the
modified equity basis, the business enterprises accounting principles are not adjusted to conform
with those of the Municipality and inter-organizational transactions and balances are not
eliminated.

(i) The taxation, other revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations
of the school boards are not reflected in these consolidated financial statements,

Basis of Accounting

(i) The consolidated financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The
accrual basis of accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenditures are
recognized as they are incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and/or
the creation of a legal obligation to pay.

(i) Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not
intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during
the year, together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the change in net
financial assets for the year.

1



Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Basis of Accounting / continued

(iity Trustfunds and their related operations administered by the Municipality are notincluded in these
financial statements but are reported separately on the Trust Funds Statement of Financial
Activities and Financial Positicn.

Taxation and Related Revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the Town based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation {MPAC’). Tax rates are established by Town Council, incorporating
amounts to be raised for local services, amounts to be raised on behalf of County of Lanark for regional
services, and amounts the Town is required to collect on behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect
of education taxes. Taxation revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are issued. Adjustments
to taxation revenue can occur during the year related fo the issuance of supplementary tax billings
and/or assessment appeals. These adjustments are recorded when the amount of the adjustments can
be quantified. The Town is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes. These revenues
are recorded in the period in which the interest and penalties are applied.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at historical cost or where historical cost records were not
available, other methods determined to provide a best estimate of historical cost and accumuiated
amortization of the assets. |n certain cases the Municipality used replacement costs and appropriate
indices to deflate the replacement cost to an estimated historical cost at the year of acquisition. Costs
include all amounts that are directly atiributable to acquisition, construction, development or betterment
of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight
line basis over their estimatsd useful lives as follows:

Land
Landfill Sites 5 years
Parking Lots 45 - 85 years
Buildings 10 - 40 ysars
Vehicles 5-20vyears
Equipment 10 - 20 years
Water and Sewer Facilities / Networks
Linear Assets 50 - 80 years
Facilities / Wells / Lagoons 16 - 40 years
Linear Assets
Roads 12 - 40 years
Sidewalks / Curbs 50 years
Bridges and Culverts 50 - 80 years

Construction in Progress

Amaortization is pro rated in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.
The Municipality has a capitalization threshold of $5,000 for vehicles and equipment and $50,000 for

linear assets and buildings so that individual capital assets of lesser value are expensed, unless they
are pooled because, collectively, they have significant value, or for operations reasons.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Tangible Capital Assets / continued

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt,
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue. Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of other asset as of the date of transfer.

When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or
abandonment of the asset, the asset's net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization,
is written off. Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset's net book
value, is reported on the consolidated statement of operations in the year of disposal. Transfers of
assets to third parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the
date of transfer.

When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Board's ability to
provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset
are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the
asset's remaining service petential. The resuiting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the
consolidated statement of operations.

Leases

Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories and prepaid expenses held for consumption are recorded at the lower of cost or
replacement cost.

Pension and Employee Benefits

The Municipality accounts for its participation in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
(‘OMERS"), a multi-employer public sector pension fund, as a defined benefit plan. The OMERS plan
specifies the retirement benefits to be received by employees based on length of service and pay rates.
Employee benefits include vacation entitlement and sick leave benefits. Vacation entitlements are
accrued as entittements are earned. Sick leave benefits are accrued in accordance with the
Municipality's policy.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Municipality considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

Government Transfers
Government transfers are recognized in the consolidated financial statements as revenues in the

period in which events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any
eligibility criteria have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Deferred Revenues

The Municipality defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed. Government transfers of gas taxes, development
charges collected under the Development Charges Act, 1997, and recreational land collected under
the Planning Act are reported as deferred revenues in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal year the services are performed.

The Municipality receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial
legislation and Municipality by-laws. These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until
applied to applicable costs are recorded as deferred revenue. Amounts applied to qualifying expenses
are recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended.

Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed. Deferred revenue also represents contributions that the
Municipality has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for
certain programs or in the completion of specific work. These amounts are recognized as revenue in
the fiscal year the services are performed or related expenses incurred.

investments

Short-term and long-term investments are recorded at cost plus accrual interest. If the market value
of investments become lower than cost and the decline in value is considered to be other than
temporary, the investments are written down to market value.

Investment income earned on surplus current funds, capital funds, reserves and reserve funds {other
than obligatory reserve funds) are reported as revenue in the period sarned. Investment income
earned on development charges and parkland obligatory reserve funds is added to the fund balance
and forms part of respective deferred revenue balances.

Landfill Closure and Post-Closure Liabilities

The Municipality accrues landfill closure and post-closure care requirements that have been defined
in accordance with industry standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill,
pumping of ground water and leachates from the site, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site
inspection and maintenance. The reported liability is based on estimates and assumptions with respect
toevents extending over a twenty-five year pericd using the best information available to management.

Future events may result in significant changes to the estimated total expenditures, capacity used or

total capacity and the estimated liability, and would be recognized prospectively, as a change in
estimate, when applicable.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Liability for Contaminated Sites

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of
a chemical, organic or radicactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.
The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for remediation of contaminated
sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met:

(a) an environmental standard exists;
(b} contamination exceeds the environmental standard;
(c) the Municipality:

{iy is direcily responsible; or

{ii) accepts responsibility
(d) it is expected that future economic benefit will be given up; and
(e) a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of cost of pos-remediation including operation,
maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated
site.

Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Municipality has classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories:
held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities, ioans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets
and other financial liabilities. Subsequent measurement of financial instruments is based on their
classification.

Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in those fair values recognized in net revenues.

Loans and receivables, held-ta-maturity financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Municipality classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts
receivable as loans and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial
liabilities.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consclidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenditures during the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. These
estimates are reviewed periodically and as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they become known.
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December 31, 2018

3. Operations of the School Boards and County of Lanark
During 2018, the Municipality collected and made property tax transfers including payments in lieu of
property taxes, to the County of Lanark and School Beards as follows:
School Boards County
$ $
Property taxes 4,147,650 7,241,044
Taxation from other governmentis 1,817 66,305
Amounts requisitioned and paid 4,149,467 7,307,349
4. Bank Indebtedness
The Municipality’s financial agreement with its bank provides for an operating credit facility of up to
$1,000,000 to finance expenses, pending receipt of property taxes and otherincome. Interest on funds
drawn is charged at the Royal Bank’s prime rate. As at December 31, 2018, there was $Nil (2017 $Nil)
drawn on the facility.
5. Deferred Revenues
A requirement of public sector accounting standards of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
Canada is that obligatory reserve funds be reported as deferred revenue. This requirement is in place
as Provincial legislation restricts how these funds may be used and under certain circumstances these
funds may possibly be refunded. The transactions for the year are summarized below:
Develoepment Recreational
Charges Land Total
$ $ $
January 1, 2018 1,777,993 1,944 1,779,937
Contributions from developers 1,337,713 --- 1,337,713
Interest 39,903 20 39,923
Transfer for capital projects (756,687) --- {756,687}
Transfer for other capital (378,347) - {378,347}
December 31, 2018 2,020,575 1,964 2,022,539
6. Investment in Ottawa River Power Corporation, Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc.,

Mississippi River Power Corporation (government business enterprises)

Ottawa River Power Corporation (ORPC) (15.94%), Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc. {OES)
(15.94%), and the Mississippi River Power Corporation {MRPC} (100.00%) are government business
enterprises in which the Municipality owns the percentage interest as noted and accounted for on a
medified equity basis in these consolidated financial statements.
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6. Investment in Ottawa River Power Corporation, Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc.,
Mississippi River Power Corporation (government business enterprises) / continued

The principal business of ORPC is to distribute electric power to the Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Almonte Ward {and other communities) and manage the electric distribution system. Ottawa River
Energy Solutions Inc. is a retailer of electricity related activities for the residents of Mississippi Mills
Almonte Ward. MRPC's principal business is the generation of electric power for the benefit of the
Municipality of Mississippi Mills Almonte Ward's residents.

The following fables provide condensed supplementary financial information setting out the
Municipality's proportionate share for the three entities for the year ended December 31.

Ottawa River Power Corporation {15.94%) 2018 2017
$ $
Financial Positiocn

Current and other assets 1,497,109 1,469,435
Capital assets 1,884,485 1,761,890
Future income taxes 143,245 107,484
3,524,839 3,338,819
Current liabilities 1,227,654 1,153,084
Long term debt _— 6,274
Net Assets 2,297,185 2,179,451

Results of Operations
Revenues 877,884 719,484
OCperating expenses 715,838 629,01
Net Income 162,046 90,483
Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc. (15.94%) 2018 2017
$ $

Financial Position

Current and other assets 208,058 202,105
Capital assets 226,995 240,693
435,053 442,798
Current liabilities 16,446 10,858
Long term debt 96,589 119,651
Net Assets 322,018 312,289

Results of Operations
Revenues 160,870 104,048
Operating expenses 143,171 86,160
Net Income 17,699 17,888

During the year, the Municipality reviewed dividends of $68,598 which is netted to other income on
consolidation.
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6. Investment in Ottawa River Power Corporation, Ottawa River Energy Solutions Inc.,
Mississippi River Power Corporation {government business enterprises) / continued

Mississippi River Power Corporation (100.00%) 2018 2017
$ $

Financial Position
Current assets 3,505,182 3,609,341
Capital assets 19,486,565 17,678,507

22,991,747 21,287,848

Current liabilities 2,055,951 1,453,429

Long term debt {excluding Municipality debt) 16,919,979 15,767,103
Net Assets 4,015,817 4,067,318
Results of Operations

Revenues 2,454,078 3,900,455

Operating expenses 2,280,577 2,740,817
Net Income 173,501 1,159,638

During 2018, the Municipality received a dividend of $225,000 (2017 $225,000) which is netted to other
income on consolidation.

7. Long Term Liabilities

{a) The balance of long term liabilities reported on the "Consolidated Statement of Financial Position”
is comprised of the following:

2018 2017

$ $
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation {2 projects) (4.63% and
4.13%), with semi annual blended payments of $41,628 and

$230,273, maturing 2022 and 2044. 7,485,512 7,711,547
Fixed rate bank loans with maturity dates between 2018 and 2036

and interest rates between 2.61% and 5.40%. 9,349,187 7,898,918
Instalment debentures with the Province of Ontario under the Ontario
Tile Loan Program. The responsibility for payment of principal and
interest charges for tile drainage and shoreline property assistance
loans has been assumed by individuals. At the end of the year, the

outstanding principal amount of this liability is 23,809 35,395

Net long term liabilities at the end of the year 16,858,508 15,645,860
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7. Long Term Liabilities / continued

(b} Principal payments fall due as follows:

General User

Revenues Charges Total

$ $ $

2019 886,002 197,719 1,083,721
2020 922,420 188,385 1,110,805
2021 955,131 194,281 1,149,412
2022 978,218 194,572 1,172,788
2023 834,683 198,901 1,033,584
2024 to 2028 3,205,048 1,105,187 4,310,235
2029 and thereafter 1,764,079 5,233,884 6,997,963

9,545,579 7,312,929 16,858,508

(c) Interest expense on long term liabilities in 2018 amounted to $604,917 (2017 $567,801).

(d) These payments are within the annual debt repayment limit prescribed by the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing.

8. Municipal Equity

Municipal equity consists of:

2018 2017
$ $
investment in tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets 76,263,211 71,609,587
Long term liabilities {16,834,699) (15,610,465)
Unfinanced Capital Projects
Parks and Recreation (514,671) (935,953)
Public works projects (3,250,343} (1,701,671)
Water and sewer projects {479,174} (87,601)
55,184,324 53,273,897
Reserves {Schedule 1) 0,228,847 8,155,599
Equity in Government Business Enterprises
Ottawa River Power Corporation 2,297,185 2,179,451
Ottawa River Energy Solution Inc. 322,018 312,288
Mississippi River Power Corporation 4,015,817 4,067,316
6,635,020 6,559,056
Totat Municipal Equity 71,048,111 67,988,552
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Pension Confributions

The Municipality makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System
("OMERS"), which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of all permanent members of its staff. The plan
is a defined benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the
employees based on the length of service and rates of pay. Employers and employees contribute to
the ptan. Since any surpluses or deficits are a joint responsibility of all Ontario municipalities and their
amployees, the Municipality does not recognize any share of the OMERS pension surplus or deficit in
these consolidated financial statements.

The amount contributed to OMERS was $383,689 (2017 $357,484) for current services and is included
as an expenditure on the Consolidated Statement of Operations classified under the appropriate
functional expenditure. Contributions by employess were a similar amount.

10.

Trust Funds

Trust funds administered by the Municipality amounting to $Nil (2017 $Nil) are presented in a separate
financial statement of trust fund balances and operations. As such balances are held in trust by the
Municipality for the benefit of others, they are not presented as part of the Municipality’s financial
position or financial activities.

1.

Provincial Offences Administration (POA)

The Town of Perth has assumed the administration of the Provincial Offences office for alt County of
Lanark resident municipalities. The transfer of administration from the Ministry of the Attorney General
fo the Town was a result of the Provincial Offences Act (POA) 1997, which provides the framework for
the transfer of responsibility and administration of POA courts.

The POA is a procedural law for administering and prosecuting provincial offences, including those
committed under the Highway Traffic Act, Compulsory Automobile Insurance Act, Trespass to Property
Act, Liquor Licence Act, Municipal By-Laws and minor federal offences. The POA governs all aspects
of legal process from serving notice to a defendant, to conducting trials, including sentencing and
appeals.

The Municipality's share of net revenues arising from operation of the POA office have been
consolidated with these financial statements. The revenue of the court office consists of fines levied
under Parts | and lll {including delay penalties) for POA charges filed in the Perth court.

If fines are paid at other court offices, the receipt is recorded in the Integrated Courts Operation
Network System (“ICON") operated by the Province of Ontario. Revenue is recognized when receipt
of funds is recorded by the provincial ICON system regardless of the location where payment is made.

The Municipality of Mississippi Mills shares net POA revenues based on weighted assessment.
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12,

Contractual Obligations

In November 2017, the Municipality entered into a contract with OCWA {Ontario Clean Water Agency).
For the management and operations of the water plant, wastewater plant and the sanitary pumping
station. The contract is for the period January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2024 and provides for a four
year extension to December 31, 2628,

The contract is a fixed price contract that provides for an annual inflation increase of 1.85%. The
contract provides for the reconciliation of hydro costs on an annual basis.

The annual cost of the contract was $1,365,721 (2017 $1,462,425).

There is no contract for palicing services. The Municipality is provided police services by the Ontario
Provincial Police under Section 5.1 of the Police Services Act. The annual charges are determined
based on the level of service and are recenciled to actual costs in the following year. The amount paid
in 2018 for police service usage was $1,866,420 (2017 $1,820,736).

The Municipality has negotiated a 7 year contract with Waste Management Canada Corporation for
the collection of curbside garbage. The contract runs from June 1, 2013 to May 31, 2020. Annual
charges are determined by reference to the Municipality's number of households, the consumer price
index and a fuel surcharge clause. The contract for 2018 was $450,739 (2017 $470,531).

The Municipality has negotiated a long term contract with GFL Environmental Inc. for the collection,
processing and marketing of recycled materials cellected at curbside. The contract runs from June 1,
2013 to May 31, 2020. Annual charges are determined based on the number of households in the
Municipality, the consumer price index and a fuel surcharge clause. The contract for 2018 was
$466,464 (2017 $465,776).

The Municipality has entered into along term lease agreement for property located at 134 Main Street.
The annual lease commitments are as follows:

$
2019 18,000
2020 16,500

13.

Contingent Liabilities

The nature of municipal activities is such that there may be litigation pending or in prospect at any
time. With respect to claims as at December 31, 2018, management believes that the Municipality has
valid defences and appropriate insurance coverages in place.

In the event any claims are successful, the amount of any potential liability is not determinable,
therefore, no amount has been accrued in the consolidated financial statements.
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14,

Landfill Closure and Post Closure Liability

The Environment Protection Act sets out the regulatory requirements to properly close and maintain
all active and inactive landfill sites. Under environmental law, there is a requirement for closure and
post-closure care of solid waste landfill sites and is in accordance with the Municipality’s accounting
policy. This requirement is to be provided for over the estimated remaining life of the landfill site based
on usage.

The Municipality currently has one active and two inactive landfill sites. The Almonte site is licensed,
and accepts approximately 100 tonnes of waste per year. At current disposal rates, the site has an
estimated lifespan of 8 to 10 years. Estimated closure costs are in the range of $935,000. The
anticipated closure plan involves a layer of sand followed by a layer of clay and soil. Annual post
closure maintenance and monitoring requirements are estimated to be $30,000 per annum.

The Pakenham site was closed in 1980 and involved covering the site with a clay cap and vegetative
cover. Additional buffer lands were also purchased at the time of closing. Annual site monitoring costs
are estimated at $10,000 per annum.

The Ramsay site was closed in 1996 with a layer of cover material of a mixture of sand, silt stone and
some clay. Annual site monitoring costs are estimated at $10,000 per annum.

Landfill closure and post-closure care requirements have been defined in accordance with industry
standards and include final covering and landscaping of the landfill, pumping of ground water and
leachates from the site, and ongoing environmental monitoring, site inspection and maintenance. The
reported liability is based on estimates and assumptions with respect to events extending over a
twenty-five year period using the best information available to management. Future events may result
in significant changes to the estimated total expenditures, capacity used or total capacity and the
estimated liahility, and would be recognized prospectively, as a change in estimate, when applicable.

Estimated total expenditures represent the sum of the discounted future cash flows for closure and
post-closure care activities discounted at the Municipality's average long term borrowing rate of 2.0%
and using an assumed rate of 2.0% for inflation. The estimated total landfill closure and post-closure
care expenditures are calculated to be approximately $1,505,000. For sites that are inactive, the
estimated liability for these expenditures is recognized immediately. Included in liabilities on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position at December 31, 2018 is an amount of $831,179 (2017
$816,179 ) with respect to landfill closure and post-closure liabilities recognized to date.

15.

Risk Management

In the normal course of operations, the Municipality is exposed to a variety of financial risks which are
actively managed by the Municipality.

The Municipality’s financial instruments consist of cash, investments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. The fair values of cash, investments and accounts payable
and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values because of their expected short term maturity
and treatment on normal trade terms.

The Municipality’s exposure to and management of risk has not changed materially from December
31, 2017.
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15. Risk Management / continued
Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possihility that the entities to which the Municipality provides services to may
experience difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. The Municipality is exposed to financial
risk that arises from the credit quality of the entities to which it provides services. The Municipality
does not have a significant exposure te any individual customer or counter party. As a result, the
requirement for credit risk related reserves for accounts receivable is minimal.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that the value of, or cash flows related to, a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The Municipality is exposed
to financial risk that arises from the interest rate differentials between the market interest rate and the
rates on its cash and cash equivalents and operating loan. Changes in variable interest rates could
cause unanticipated fluctuations in the Municipality’s operating results.

Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Municipality will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The

Municipality reguires working capital to meet day-to-day operating activities. Management expects that
the Municipality’s cash flows from operating activities will be sufficient to meet these requirements.

16. Tangible Capital Assets

2018 2017
$ $
Land 329,643 329,636
Landfill Sites 38,909 42,759
Buildings 11,190,495 10,911,335
Vehicles 4,272,626 3,626,412
Equipment
Parks 1,426,898 1,486,632
Streetlights and traffic lights 1,029,506 705,174
Other 975,626 844 778
Water and Sewer Facilities / Networks
Linear assets 14,223,785 13,418,708
Water tower 674,250 731,694
Wells, lagoons, pumping stations 25,866,048 26,679,840
Linear Assets
Roads 7,371,199 6,377,447
Sidewalks and curbs 2,125,392 2,041,825
Bridges and culverts 6,278,018 3,434,765
Construction in Progress 460,816 977,582
76,263,211 71,608,587

For additional information, see Schedule 2 » Tangible Capital Assets.
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17. Segmented Information

The Municipality is a diversified municipal government that provides a wide range of services to its
citizens. The services are provided by departments and their activities are reported in the consolidated
statement of operations.

Departments have been separately disclosed in the segmented information, along with the service they
provide, are set out in the schedule below.

For each reported segment, expenditures represent both amounts that are directly attributable to the
segment and amounts that are allocated on a reasonable basis. Therefore, certain allocation
methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.

The accounting policies used in these segments are consistent with those followed in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements as disclosed in note 2.

Salaries,
2018 Wages & Debenture
Employee Debt Materials External
Benefits Interest & Services Transfers  Amortization Total
$ $ $ $ $ §
General Government
Governance 208,711 -- 43,635 -—- - 280,346
Carporate Management 1,030,517 §3,268 696,064 — 174,680 1,984,529
Pretection to Persons
and Property
Fire 389,637 38,321 269,509 -— 187,393 884,860
Pdlice 600 - 1,873,350 - - 1,873,950
Conservation Authority - - 73,171 - 73,171
Protective Inspection 450,750 - 0,740 o 5,778 587,269
Transportation
Roatways 1,010,138 132,174 1,400,851 - 1,099,607 3,642,770
Winter Control 191,825 - 665,496 - 857,321
Street Lighting 457 -- $8,174 - 68,733 167,364
Environmental
Sanitary Sewer
and Waterworks 354,448 308,695 2,286,458 “— 1,243,875 4,193,476
Waste Services 60,919 — 1,491,007 -— 5,316 1,657,242
Social and Family
Child Care 1,552,689 - 189,561 — 14,002 1,756,252
Recreation and
Cultural Services
Recreation Facilities
& Programs 602,513 32,836 950,476 246,788 302,000 2,134,613
Libraries 486,642 - 127,334 51,033 90,882 755,891
Cultural Services -— - - 10,432 - 10,432
Planning and
Development
Planning & Zoning 192,433 - 166,372 = - 358,805
Eccnomic Development 97,513 7.499 113,673 - wan 218,885
Agriculture 2,965 2,124 - -- - 5,089
2018 6,670,757 804,917 10,462,700 381,424 3,192,267 21,312,065
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17. Segmented Information / continued

Salaries,
2017 Wages & Debenture
Employee Debt Materials External
Benefits Interest & Services Transfers Amortization Total
$ $ $ L $ 3
General Government
Governance 209,008 - 44 526 --- -—— 253,534
Corporate Management 768,232 82,404 385,572 - 177,060 1,423,268
Protection to Persons
and Property
Fire 322,625 22,076 253,739 - 177,087 775,527
Police 700 -— 1,826,567 - - 1,827,267
Conservation Autharity - - -— 68,796 — 68,796
Protective Inspection 424 258 -— 152,934 8,409 2,957 588,558
Transportation
Roadways 957,753 106,554 1,346,716 - 947,598 3,358,621
Winter Control 192,112 -— 670,903 - — 863,015
Street Lighting 492 -— 164,299 - 62,510 227,301
Environmental
Sanitary Sewer
and Waterworks 323,806 314,822 2,196,482 -- 1,252,849 4,087,959
Waste Services 50,050 - 1,464,812 -- 1,631 1,516,393
Social and Family
Child Care 1,461,223 183,435 -— 14,002 1,658,660
Recreation and
Cultural Services
Recreation Facilities
& Programs 768,228 32,696 673,509 325472 291,961 2,091,866
Libraries 417,071 - 83,956 49,575 73,582 624,184
Cultural Services 975 - 2,198 19,823 — 22 997
Planning and
Development
Planning & Zoning 198,658 uas 107,117 - - 305,775
Eccnomic Development 90,637 9,249 118,940 - 8,743 227,569
Agriculture — - 2,338 - 2,338
2017 6,185,828 567,801 0,688,044 472075 3,009,880 19,923,628
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18. Budget Figures

The 2018 budget amounts that were approved were not prepared on a basis consistent with that used
toreport actual results (Public Sector Accounting Board Standards). The budgetincluded capitalitems
such as infrastructure replacements and estimated costs for constructed assets, as program expenses,
but the actual expenses have been removed in the Statement of Operations. The revenues
attributable to these items continue to be included in the Statement of QOperations, resulting in a
significant variance. The following analysis is provided to assist readers in their understanding of
differences between the approved budget and the audited financial statements:

Budget Actual
$ $
Total Revenues 19,632,718 21,455,881
Total Expenditures 21,344,253 21,312,065
Net {Expenditures) Revenues (1,711,535} 143,816
Amortization 3,248,533 3,192,267
Adjusted Net Revenues 1,536,998 3,336,083
Capital Revenues 1,512,613 2,915,823
Funds Available 3,049,611 6,251,906
Capital Expenditures (9,252,896} (8,011,581}
Disposal of tangible capital assets - 165,690
Net Change in Investment in:
Ottawa River Power Corporation - (117,734}
Ofttawa River Energy Solutions Inc. — (9,729)
Mississippi River Power Corporation - 51,499
Principal Repayments (1,042,417} (958,266)
Net Long Term Debt Acquired - 6,294,105 2,182,500
Decrease in Operating Surplus (951,597} (445,715)
Allocated as follows:
Net transfers (from) to reserves _ (951,587} 1,073,248
Net increase in unfinanced capital - (1,518,963)
(951,597} (445,715)
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(Note 18)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
Net Transfers From/(To) Other Funds
Transfers from operations 726,003 2,884,523 2,083,927
Transfers to capital acquisitions (1,677,600} {1,811,275) {1,651,653)
Total Net Transfers {951,597) 1,073,248 432,274
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,
Change in Year {951,597) 1,073,248 432,274
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,
Beginning of Year 8,155,568 8,155,599 7,723,325
Reserves and Reserve Fund Balances,
End of Year 7.204,002 9,228,847 8,155,509

Composition of Reserves and Reserve Funds

For the year ended December 31 2018 2017

$ $

Reserves set aside for specific purposes by Council:
For the Municipality of Mississippi Mills
For Operating Purposes

» for working capital 1,100,000 1,100,000
» for contingencies 496,316 701,250
» for library 125,936 98,879
» for winter control 55,820 55,820
» for protection to persons and property 466,145 300,766
+ for planning and zoning 2,159 42,159
+» for economic development 127,569 05,432
» for parking 32,738 32,738
» for daycare 470,194 131,728
» for the Former Township of Ramsay - general purposes 2,640 2,917
» for the Former Township of Pakenham - general purposes 267 8,490
2,879,784 2,570,179
For Capital Purposes

» for acquisition of capital assets 1,715,407 1,348,843
» for public works 476,896 644,742
» for recreation 239,615 312,394
» for fire 40,149 38,026
» for waste management 1,263,941 1,113,332
» for the Former Town of Almonte - water and sewer 2,383,772 1,956,514
» for septage system 229,283 171,569
6,349,063 5,585,420

Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 9,228,847 8,155,599

The accompany notes are an integral part of these consoclidated financial statements.
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Cost Cost
Asset Class 01/0118 Additions (Disposals) 311218
5 5 $ $
Land 320,836 7 - 329,643
Landfill Sites 112,423 -— - 112,423
Buildings 17,996,192 730,069 18,726,261
Vehicles 6,681,914 1,150,996 {785,242) 7,047,668
Equipment
Parks 2,161,243 37,000 — 2,198,243
Streetlights and traffic lights 3,179,016 393,065 {395,675) 3,176,406
Other 3,255,617 287,424 {42,995) 3,500,046
Water and Sewer
Linear assets 18,837,495 1,136,701 (34,204) 19,939,992
Water tower 1,701,978 - - 1,701,978
Waells, lagoons,
pumping staficns 32,412,262 - - 22,412,262
Linear Assets
Roads 14,549,573 1,659,500 (187,270) 16,021,803
Sidewalks and curbs 3,383,497 158,844 (4,595) 3,537,846
Bridges and culverts 4,304,043 2,974,641 - 7,278,684
Construction in Progress 977,582 (516,766) — 460,816
109,882,471 8,011,581 (1,449,981) 116,444,071
Accumulated Accumulated Net Book
Amortization Amortization Value
Asset Class 01/01/18 Amortization (Disposals) 1218 311218
$ $ 5 $ $
Land -— - - - 329,643
Landfill Sites 69,664 3,850 - 73,514 38,909
Buildings 7,084,857 450,909 - 7,535,766 11,190,495
Vehicles 3,055,502 339,002 (618,552) 2,775,042 4,272,626
Equipment
Parks 674,611 96,734 — 771,345 1,426,898
Sireetlights and traffic lights 2,473,842 68,733 {395,675) 2,146,900 1,029,506
Other 2,410,839 156,576 {42,995) : 2,524,420 975,626
Water and Sewer
Linear assets 5417,787 332,624 (34,204) 5,716,207 14,223,785
Water tower 970,284 57444 - 1,027,728 674,250
Wells, fagocns,
pumping stations 5,732,422 813,792 - 6,546,214 25,866,048
Linear Assets
Roads 8,172,126 665,748 (187,270} 8,650,604 7,371,199
Sidewalks and curbs 1,341,672 75,377 (4,595) 1,412,454 2,125,392
Bridges and culverts 869,273 131,388 - 1,000,666 6,278,018
Construction in Progress — - 460,816
38,272,884 3,192,267 (1,284,291) 40,180,860 76,263,211

The accompany notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Schedule 2 » 2017 Tangible Capital Assets

Cost Cost
Asset Class 01/01117 Additions (Dispossls) 3217
$ $ $ $
Land 319,900 9,736 - 329,636
Landfill Sites 112,423 e - 112,423
Buildirngs 16,543,162 1,453,030 17,996,192
Vehicles 5,805,145 013,858 (227,089) 6,681,914
Equipmeant
Parks 1,198,111 963,132 2,161,243
Streetlights and iraffic lights 3,165,116 13,900 - 3,178,016
Other 3,002,943 252,674 - 3,255,617
Water and Sewer
Linear assets 16,865,236 1,936,584 (67,325) 18,837,495
Water tower 1,701,978 - - 1,701,978
Wells, lagoons,
pumping stations 32,244,845 167,417 -— 32,412,262
Linear Assets
Roads 13,005,683 1,543,890 - 14,549,573
Sidewalks and curbs 3,229,423 203,107 (49,033) 3,383,497
Bridges and culverts 3,473,333 830,710 - 4,304,043
Construction in Progress 823,646 153,936 — 977,582
101,780,944 8,444,974 (343,447) 109,882,471
Accumulated Accumulated Net Book
Amortization Amortization Value
Asset Class /0117 Amortizaticn (Disposals) nHz2ny 3127
$ $ $ $ $
Land - -—- -— wn 329,626
Landfill Sites 65,814 3,850 — 69,664 42,759
Buildings 6,657,230 427,627 - 7,084,857 10,911,335
Vehicles 2,945,741 336,850 {227,089} 3,055,502 3,626,412
Equipment
Parks 594,181 80,430 - 674,611 1,486,632
Streetlights and traffic lights 2,412,692 61,250 - 2,473,842 705,174
Other 2,265,351 145,488 - 2,410,839 844,778
Water and Sewer
Linear assets 5,153,001 332111 {67,325) 5,417,787 13,419,708
Water tower 912,857 57,427 970,284 731,694
Wells, lagoons,
pumping stations 4,908,159 824,263 5,732,422 26,679,840
Linear Assets
Roads 7,589,162 572,964 8,172,126 8,377,447
Sidewalks and curbs 1,285,635 105,070 (49,033) 1,341,672 2,041,825
Bridges and culverts 806,728 62,550 - 869,278 3,434,765
Construction in Progress -— - - - 977,582
35,606,451 3,008,880 {343,447) 38,272,884 71,609,587

The accompany notes are an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers

of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills:

Opinion

We have audited the statement of financial statements of the trust fund of the Corporation of the
Municipality of Mississippi Mills (the ‘Entity’), which comprise:

+  the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018;
«  the statement of financial activities for the year then ended,;
« and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies;

{Hereinafter referred to as the financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respecis, the financial
position of the Entity as at December 31, 2018, and its financial activities for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
. Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our auditor's repori.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. - -

30

RERRERRE

NN



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes

our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements. ‘

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design ‘audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required o draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going

concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Aflan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Perth, Ontario
June 4, 2019.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Trust Fund
Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2018 2017
$ $
ASSETS
Cash — —
LIABILITIES

Fund balance —— ——

Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31 2018 2017

$ $
REVENUES

Bank inferest - —

EXPENDITURES

Cenotaph repairs - 6,805
NET REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) FOR THE YEAR - {6,805)
BALANCE AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR -- 6,805

BALANCE AT THE END OF THE YEAR - —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Trust Fund
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

1. Significant Accounting Policies
Reporting Entity

Perpetual care receipts, for the war memorial, are reported on the cash basis of accounting and interest
income is reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

Expenditures are reported on the cash basis of accounting with the exception of administrative expenses
which are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes expenditures as they are
incurred and measurable as a result of the receipt of goods or services and the creation of a legal
obligation to pay.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers
of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills:

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Corporation of the Municipality of Mississippi Mills Public
Library Board (ihe ‘Entity’), which comprise: :

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018;

the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net financial asseis for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies;

(Hereinafter referred to as the ‘financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Entity as at December 31, 2018, and its results of operations, its changes in net financial
assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Ganadian Public Sector Accounting

Standards.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described In the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our auditor's repott.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financia! statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. :
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepating the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entltys ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our apinion.,

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

«  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internali contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s Internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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»  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. I we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

Allan and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Perth, Ontario
June 4, 2019.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Statement of Financial Position

(Note 6)
December 31 2018 2017
$ $
ASSETS
Financial Assets
Cash and short term deposits 83 112
Accounts receivable 12,813 3,680
Due from Town of Mississippi Mills 19,657 43,019
32,553 46,811
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 15,219 16,660
Other current liabilities 17,334 30,151
32,553 46,811
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS —
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets {note 4} 1,381,847 1,424,225
ACCUMUELATED SURPLUS {(note 3) 1,381,947 1,424,225

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Statement of Operations

{Note 5)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
REVENUES
Government Grants
Municipal Grants 575,424 555,213 533,002
Province of Ontario 31,848 64,702 50,344
Federal Grants 12,000 10,673 -
User Charges
Programs 393 -
Rentals 1,900 2,330 2,753
Photocopy charges 1,400 1,902 1,667
Other Income
Fines 10,400 12,450 11,857
Donations, bock sales, miscellaneous 4,450 4,130 2,256
TOTAL REVENUES 637,422 651,793 601,879
EXPENDITURES
Salaries, wages, employee benefits 461,091 486,642 417,070
Library materials 16,000 15,010 16,610
Administration 34,360 32,649 29,692
Insurance 2,270 3,181 3,094
Building maintenance and utilities 53,108 45,995 30,104
Programs - 1,179 3,911
Contribution to Carleton Place Pubtic Library 52,910 51,033 49,575
Minor capital 50,300 37,300 -
Amoaortization 90,000 90,882 73,584
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 760,039 763,871 623,640
NET EXPENDITURES
FROM OPERATIONS (122,617) {112,078} (21,761)
OTHER
Grants and transfers related to capital
Municipal contribution to tangible capital assets 106,550 22,524 241,429
Deferred revenues earned 51,750 32,500 371,714
Government grants - - 245,341
Fundraising and donations 45,000 14,776 184,328
203,300 69,800 1,042,812
ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS 80,683 (42,278) 1,021,051
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,424,225 1,424,225 403,174
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR 1,504,908 1,381,947 1,424,225

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

For the year ended December 31 2018 2017
$ $

ANNUAL (DEFICIT) SURPLUS (42,278) 1,021,051
Amortization of tangible capital assets 90,882 73,584
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (48,604) {1,094,635)
42278 {(1,021,051)

INCREASE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS

NET DEBT, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31 2018 2017
$ 5
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual {deficit} surplus (42,278} 1,021,051
Non cash changes » amortization 90,882 73,584
48,604 1,094,635
Net Change in Non-Cash Working Capital ltems
Accounts receivable (9,133) {14,103}
Due from Municipality 23,362 49
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,441) 4,023
Other current liabilities {12,817) 10,027
{29) (4)
Working Capital from Operations 48,575 1,094,631
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {48,604} {1,094,635)
NET DECREASE IN CASH (29) (4)
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 112 1186
CASH, END OF YEAR 83 112

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

40



Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

1. Status of the Board

The Mississippi Mills Public Library Board (the ‘Board’) was established under the Public Library Act,
1992, R.S.0. 1990 in accordance with the Section 15 of the Minister of Municipal Affairs Restructuring
Order which amalgamated the former Town of Almonte and the Townships of Ramsay and Pakenham.

2.  Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Mississippi Mills Public Library Board are the representations of
management and have been prepared in all material respects in accordance with Canadian Public
Sector Accounting Standards Board (‘PSAB’). Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted
by the Board are as follows:

Reporting Entity

The financial statements reflect financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and expenditures,
reserves, reserve funds and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the Board.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting records revenue as it is earned and measurable. Expenditures are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable based on receipt of goods and services and/or the creation of a legal
cbligation to pay.

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in the
provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year, and are not intended
for sale in the ordinary course of operations. The change in non-financial assets during the year,
together with the excess of revenues over expenses, provides the Change in Net Financial Assets for
the year. ‘

Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which include all amounts that are directly attributable to

acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated usefui lives as follows:

Assets Estimated Useful Life
Building 40 years
Books 7 years

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and the year of disposal.
Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use, at which
time they are capitalized.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Tangible Capital Assets / continued

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the date of receipt,
and that fair value is also recorded as revenue. Similarly, transfers of assets to third parties are
recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of other assets as of the date of transfer.

When tangible capital assets are disposed of, either by way of a sale, destruction or loss, or
abandonment of the asset, the asset’s net book value, historical cost less accumulated amortization,
is written off. Any resulting gain or loss, equal to the proceeds on disposal less the asset's net book
value, is reported on the statement of operations in the year of disposal. Transfers of assets to third
parties are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the asset as of the date of transfer.

When conditions indicate that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Board's ability to
provide services or the value of the future economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset
are less than its net book value, and the decline is expected to be permanent, the cost and
accumulated amortization of the asset are reduced to reflect the revised estimate of the value of the
asset’s remaining service potential. The resulting net adjustment is reported as an expense on the
statement of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Board considers cash and cash equivalents to be highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Government Transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements as revenues in the period in which
events giving rise to the transfer occur, providing the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria
have been met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.

Deferred Revenue

The Board defers recognition of user charges and fees which have been collected but for which the
related services have yet to be performed. These amounts will be recognized as revenues in the fiscal
year the services are performed.

The Board receives restricted contributions under the authority of Federal and Provincial legislation
and Board by-laws. These funds by their nature are restricted in their use and until applied to
applicable costs are recorded as deferred revenue. Amounts applied to qualifying expenses are
recorded as revenue in the fiscal period they are expended.

Deferred revenue represents certain user charges and fees which have been collected but for which
the related services have yet to be performed. Deferred revenue also represents contributions that the
Board has received pursuant to legislation, regulation or agreement that may only be used for certain
programs or in the completion of specific work. These amounts are recognized as revenue in the fiscal
year the services are performed or related expenses incurred.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Financial Instruments

All financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the statement of financial position. The
Board has classified each financial instrument into one of the following categories: held-for-trading
financial assets and liabilities, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other
financial liabilities. Subsequent measurement of financial instruments is based on their classitication.

Held-for-trading financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value with changes
in those fair values recognized in net revenues.

L oans and receivables, held-to-maturity financial assets and other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The Board classifies cash and cash equivalents as held-for-trading financial assets, accounts
receivable as loans and receivables, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities as other financial
liabilities.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenditures during
the period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically
and as adjustments become necessary, they are recorded in the financial statements in the period in
which they become known.

3.  Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus (deficit) and reserves as follows:

2018 2017
$ $

Surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets 1,381,947 1,424,225
Deficit -
Accumulated Surplus 1,381,947 1,424,225
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Public Library Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

4. Tangible Capital Assets

Net Book Value of Assets 2018 2017
$ $

Buildings 1,226,040 1,270,665
Bocks 155,907 153,560
1,381,947 1,424,225

For additional information, see Schedule 1 » Tangible Capital Assets.

5. Budget Figures

Mississippi Mills Public Library Board reviews its operating and capital budgets each year. The
approved operating budget for 2018 is included in the budget figures presented in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

6. Comparative information

During 2018, the original cost and net book value were reconciled to the detailed list of tangible capital
assets. Current year data is presented with the correcied value.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills i
Public Library Board nr
Schedule 1 » Tangible Capital Assets ra
December 31, 2018 —
Accumulated Accumulated Net Book
Cost Additions Cost Amortization Amortization Amortization Value
Agsets 01/01/18 (Disposals) 31/M12/18 010118 2018 31/12/18 MM2M18
$ $ $ $ $ $ $
1,15
Buildings 1,789,829 - 1,789,829 519,164 44 625 563,789 1,226,040
Bocks 1,309,366 48,604 1,357,970 1,155,806 48,257 1,202,063 155,907
3,009,195 48,604 3,147,766 1,674,970 90,882 1,765,852 1,381,947 1?
34
2
3
December 31, 2017
3
Accumulated Accumulated Net Book 3
Cost Additions Cost Amortization Anrnortization Amortization Value
Assets 01/0117 (Disposals) 3217 01/0117 2017 311217 M7
$ $ $ $ L 5 $ .
Buildings 747,017 1,042,812 1,789,829 486,767 32,397 519,164 1,270,665 |7
Boaks 1,257,543 51,823 1,309,366 1,114,619 41,187 1,165,806 153,560 —
2,004,560 1,084,635 3,089,195 1,601,386 73,584 1,674,970 1,424,225
12
13
1
23
21
20
1
8
1
2
2
37
g
s
1
1
10
1,77

The accompany notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills

Day Care Centre
Statement of Operations
{Note 18)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
REVENUES
Grants
County of Lanark . 592,195 939,195 728,705
Municipality of Mississippi Mills 13,587 {325,294) {43,979)
User charges
Child care fees 914,000 1,091,238 895,800
Other
Contribution from developers 13,000 13,000 13,000
Fundraising 5,000 4,819 2,949
TOTAL REVENUES 1,537,782 1,722,958 1,596,475
EXPENDITURES
Salaries » supervisory and teaching 1,085,303 1,216,494 1,133,468
» other 64,918 65,892 73,695
Employee benefits 244 111 270,303 254,060
Staff travel and training 5,000 7,790 2,825
Food and kitchen supplies 56,800 67,291 53,623
Insurance 2,150 1,989 2,926
Program supplies 31,000 37,262 24,075
Property operations and maintenance 32,500 36,275 34,864
Office and other 5,000 9,447 14,749
Bad debt 1,000 10,215 2,190
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,537,782 1,722,958 1,596,475

NET REVENUES FOR THE YEAR - -
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Municipality of Mississippi Mills
Waterworks Operations Schedule
Statement of Operations

{Note 18)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
REVENUES
User charges
Water hill revenue 2,861,065 3,077,574 2,829,633
Hydrant rental 3,500 3,500 3,500
Rent 19,800 19,800 21,600
Miscellaneous fees and service charges 39,600 60,268 77,371
Other
Contribution from developers 368,297 363,417 279,302
Government transfers 51,700 89,298 335,675
Interest » Ottawa River Power Corporation 64,680 54,057 70,789
» Mississippi River Power Caorporation 66,000 189,750 206,860
Interest and penalty 67,620 81,493 66,710
TOTAL REVENUES 3,542,162 3,939,157 3,891,240
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Administration 218,779 214,688 240,671
Sanitary sewer maintenance 75,541 76,653 67,210
Water distribution » general 5,000 10,635 5,260
» maintenance 217,681 243,840 202,307
Meter installation and maintenance 41,250 57,697 44 081
Billing and collecting 13,280 9,039 7,469
Pump houses and lagoons 1,521,358 1,462,626 1,542,241
Interest on leng term debt 308,872 308,695 314,822
Principat on long term debt 185,325 185,325 175,305
2,588,086 2,569,198 2,600,086
Capital
Sewer and watermain reconstruction 995,000 869,300 845,971
Plant upgrades 606,100 363,645 493,068
Other construction and equipment 169,900 101,331 182,673
1,771,000 1,334,276 1,521,712
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,359,086 3,903,474 4,121,778
NET REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)
FOR THE YEAR (816,924) 35,683 {230,538)
FINANCING AND TRANSFERS
Proceeds of long term debt 595,015 --- 209,980
Transfers to reserves {362,091) (1,014,022) (598,907)
Transfers from reserves 584,000 586,765 741,851
816,924 {427,257} 352,924
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN FUND BALANCES {391,574} 122,386
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The accompanying financial statements of the Mississippi River Power Corporation are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management and-have been prepared in compliance with
legislation, and in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. A summary of
significant accounting policies are described in note 2 to the financial statements. The preparation
of financial statements necessarily involved the use of estimates based on management's
judgement, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be
finalized with certainty until future periods.

The Corporation's management maintains a system of internal controls designed to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and
recorded in compliance with. legislative and regulatory requirements, and reliable financial
information is available on a timely basis for preparation of financial statements. These systems
are monitored and evaluated by management.

Management meets with the external auditors to review the financial statements and discuss any
significant financial reporting or internal control matters. The Board of Directors meets with
management subsequently to review these same matters -prior to the Board's approval of the
financial statements.

The financial statements have been audited by Ailan and Partners LLP, independent external
auditors appointed by the Gorporation. The accompanying Independent Auditor's Report outlines
theirresponsibilities, the scope of their examination andtheir opinion on the Corporation’s financial
statements.

Paul Virgin, President . Scott J. Newton, General Manager
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of the Mississippi River Power Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Mississippi River Power Corporation (the ‘Entity’), which
comprise: -

the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; R S

and the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies;

L] -* - L] L ]

(Hereinafter referred to as the financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Entity as at December 31, 2018, and its financial performance, its changes In net equity and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financtal Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Ganadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our
responsibilities-under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our auditor’s report. :

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit
of the financia! statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance

with these requirements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. -

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our apinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Missiatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

The risk of not dstecting a material misstatement resulting fram fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

51



»  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going

concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

b

Alian and Partners LLP
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Perth, Ontario
March 4, 2019.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation

Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

December 31 2018 2017
$ $
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 2,048,580 2,400,956
Accounts receivable (net of allowance) 1,096,351 4,074,468
Government taxes receivable 199,498 -
Payment in lieu of income taxes receivable (note &) 113,346 -
Deferred expenses wam 87,746
Prepaid expenses 47,407 46,171
3,505,182 3,609,341
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment {note 3) 19,486,565 17,678,507
Total Assets 22,991,747 21,287,848
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 500,716 273,193
Government taxes payable - 155,113
Payments in lieu of income taxes payable (note 6) - 12,675
Deferred revenue n=- 700
Interest payable 238,866 119,433
Dividend payable 225,000 -
Short term financial liabilities (note 5) 616,369 444,715
1,580,951 1,005,829
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term financial liabilities {note 5) 19,308,632 18,155,756
Deferred tax liabilities (note 6} 475,000 447,600
19,783,632 18,603,356
EQUITY
Capital Stock 2,000 2,000
Retained Earnings 1,625,164 1,676,663
1,627,164 1,678,663
Total Equity and Liabilities 22,991,747 21,287,848
Basis of Presentation (note 1) Commitments (note 9)
and Contingent Liabilities {note 10}
On Behalf of the Board:
, Chair , Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Changes in Equity
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

(Note 13)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
Revenue » sale of power 2,306,244 2,454,078 3,900,465
Cost of Power » Direct Expenses
Amortization » plant and equipment 638,440 665,733 638,440
Heat, light and power 28,000 14,284 27,728
Insurance 26,6895 27,163 31,5621
Plant automation 48,000 5,594 3,789
Repairs and maintenance » building 47,500 31,990 §8,639
» equipment 121,150 83,021 83,564
» engineering faes 35,000 86,480 104,444
» vehicle 5,200 4,408 3,209
Taxes, fees and licences 15,586 15,586 15,586
Wages and bensfits 90,000 82,734 88,618
1,055,571 1,016,993 1,085,538
Income Before Operating Expenses 1,250,673 1,437,085 2,814,917
Operating Expenses
Advertising and promotion 10,000 6,729 5,582
Amortization ' 29,578 31,028 31,377
Finance
Bank charges and interest 2,000 1,518 2,149
Debenture interest 763,940 763,257 780,894
Loan interest 153,308 156,309 153,566
Feasability studies 53,100 53,033 133,837
Occupancy
Heat, light and power 8,900 6,712 7,079
Insurance 1,582 1,582 1,582
Repairs and maintenance » building 37,500 33,588 14,784
» equipment 1,700 1,915 1,182
» grounds keeping 25,550 19,759 21,990
Taxes, fees and licenses 6,250 6,075 8,059
Office
Bockkeeping 3,000 2,289 2,268
Office 9,000 6,570 6,982
Telephone and communications 10,000 7,701 9,716
Professional fees 15,500 11,563 13,485
Wages
Directors fees 31,500 31,000 28,000
Wages and benefits 122,434 113,760 121,672
1,284,842 1,254,388 1,342,204
Operating Income (Loss) {34,169) 182,697 1,472,713
Other Income and Expense
Other income and net rent 5,700 33,088 20,200
Income (Expense) Before Amount
in Lieu of Income Taxes (28,489} 215,785 1,492,913

Continued on Next Page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation |

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Changes in Equity
{Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

{Note 13)
For the year ended December 31 Budget 2018 2017
$ $ $
Income {Expense) Before Amount

in Lieu of Income Taxes / continued (28,469) 215,785 1,492,913
Income Taxes (note 6)

Payment in lieu of income taxes (6,548) 14,884 152,675

Deferred income taxes umm 27,400 180,600

(6,548) 42,284 333,275
Net Income (Loss) for the Year (21,921) 173,501 1,169,638
Retained Earnings,

Beginning of Year 1,676,663 1,676,663 742,025
Dividends (225,000) (225,000) {225,000)
Retained Earnings,

End of Year 1,429,742 1,625,164 1,676,663

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in Canadian Dollars)

For the year ended December 31 2018 2017
$ $
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income for the year 173,501 1,169,638
Amortization 696,761 669,817
Income tax expense 27,400 180,600
897,662 2,010,055
Movements in Working Capital
Accounts receivable (21,883) {241,147}
Government taxes receivable {199,498) 6,242
Payments in lieu of income taxes receivable {113,346) -—
Deferred expenses 87,746 32,732
Prepaid expenses (1,236) 5,432
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 227,523 138,891
Government taxes payable (155,113} 155,113
Payments in lieu of income taxes payable (12,675) 12,675
Deferred revenue (700) {700)
Interest payable 119,433 -
Dividend payable 225,000 -
155,251 109,238
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments to acquire capital assets (note 3} (2,504,819) (69,512)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends paid and payable {225,000) {225,000}
Advance of long term borrowings 1,783,888
Repayment of long term borrowings {459,358) (425,783)
1,099,530 {650,783)
Change in Cash, During the Year {352,376) 1,398,998
Cash, Beginning of Year 2,400,956 1,001,958
Cash, End of Year 2,048,580 2,400,956

The accompanying naotes are an integral part of these financial statements.

56



Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

The Mississippi River Power Corporation {the ‘Corporation’) was incorporated in Canada under the Business
Corporations Act (Ontario) on April 27, 2000 by the Municipality of Mississippi Mills, its sole shareholder, to
comply with provincial legislation. This Corporation’s principal activities include the generation and sale of
hydro-electric power in the Municipality of Mississippi Mills, Ontario and is regulated by the Ontario Energy
Board (OEB). The address of the Corporation’s registered office is 28 Mill Street, P. O. Box 179, Almonte,
Ontario, KOA 1A0.

1. Basis of Presentation
Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Mississippi River Power Corporation are the representation of
management and are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the interpretations are issued
by the International Financial Reporting Intsrpretations Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.
Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Canadian dollars, which is the Corporation’s functional
currency. All financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest dollar.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The presentation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires management to make certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the
Corporation's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment, complexity, or
areaswhere assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in each
relevant significant accounting policy where applicable.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
In the future, actual experience may differ from these estimates and assumptions.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
The preparation and presentation of the financial statements can be significantly affected by the
accounting policies selected by the Corporation. The financial statements reflect the following
significant accounting policies, which are an integral part of understanding them.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements unless otherwise indicated.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2.

Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Revenues

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Corporation recognizes revenue when it transfers
control over a product or service to a customer.

The Corporation’s principal activities include the generation and sale of hydro-electric power within the
Municipality of Mississippi Mills. The sales are made between the Corporation and Ottawa River Power
Corporation. It is regulated by the Ontario Energy Board (OEB).

Receivables, from contracts with customers, are included in ‘accounts receivable’ on the statement of
financial position.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on demand with financial institutions,
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Asseis
Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

These include cash and accounts receivable. Collectability of accounts receivable is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Accounts receivable which are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision
for doubtful receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Corporation will not be
able to collect all the amounts due accounting to the original term of the receivables. In determining
the allowance for doubtful accounts, the Corporation considers historical loss experience of account
balances based on the aging and arrears status of accounts receivable balances. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of future cash
flows. The amount of the provision is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as other financial liabilities.
These liabilities are measured at amortized cost.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PP&E) are recorded at cost, being the purchase price and directly
attributable cost of acquisition or construction required to bring the asset to the location and condition
necessary to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Corporation.

Amortization of PP&E is recorded in the statement of comprehensive income on a straighi-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the related asset. Half of a year's amortization is taken for the first
year, regardless of when the property was actually put into service during the year. The estimated
useful lives, residual values, and amortization methods are reviewed at the end of each annual
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of PP&E are determined by comparing the net proceeds from

disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are included in the statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is disposed.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2. Significant Accounting Policies / continued
Property, Plant and Equipment / continued

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 40 years
Substation 20 years
Generation Eguipment 20 years
Office Equipment 10 years
Water Rights 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Signage 5 years
Safety Equipment 5 years
Computer Equipment 5 years
Paving, Landscaping and Fencing 5 years
Leasehold Improvements 5-20 years

Borrowing Costs

The Corporation capitalizes interest expenses and other finance charges directly relating to the
acquisition, construction, or production of assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for
itsintended use. Capitalization commences when expenditures are being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred, and activities that are necessary to prepare the assets for its intended use or sale are
in progress. Capitalization will be suspended during periods in which active developmentis interrupted.
Capitalization should cease when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are complete.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Corporation conducts assessments of the values of PP&E to determine whether there are events
or changes in circumstances that indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where
carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs to sell, the asset is written down accordingly. Animpairment loss is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income except to the extent it reverses gains previously recognized in other
comprehensive income,

Pension Plan

The permanent employees of the Corporation participate in the Ontario Municipal Employees
Retirement System (“OMERS"). The Corporation also makes contributions to the OMERS plan on
behalf of its employees. The plan has a defined benefit option at retirement available to employees,
which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit plan to be received by the employees based on
length of service and rates of pay.

Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payable

The Corporation is a Municipal Electricity Utility (MEU} for purposes of the payments in lieu of taxes
(PILs) regime contained in the Eleciricity Act, 1998. As a MEU, the Corporation is exempt from tax
under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act (Ontario).

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Corporation is required to make, for each taxation year, PlLs to
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporations (“OEFC"). These payments are calculated in accordance with
rules for computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in The Income
Tax Act (Canada) and the Corporations Tax Act (Ontario} as modified by the Electricity Act, 1998 and
related regulations.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2.

Significant Accounting Peolicies / continued

Payments in Lieu of Taxes Payable / continued

Provision in lieu of taxes (PILs) is comprised of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax
are recognized in net income except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity.

Current PlLs are recognized on the taxable income or loss for the current year plus any adjustment in
respect of previous years. Current PILS are determined using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the year-end date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized where the carrying amount of an asset or liability
differs from its tax base. The amount of the deferred tax asset or liability is measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. This amount is determined using tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the year-end date and are
expected to apply when the liabilities/(assets) are settled/{recovered).

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations undertaken during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain.

At the end of each reporting period, the Corporation reassesses both recognized and unrecognized
deferred tax liahilities.

Finance Income and Finance Costs

Finance income is comprised of interest income on funds invested such as cash and short-term
investments. Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the statement of comprehensive income,
using the effective interest method.

Finance cost is comprised of interest payable on debt.
Equity

Share capital represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued. Retained Earnings include
all current and prior period retained profits. Dividend distribution payable to equity shareholders are
included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved prior to the recording date.

Financial Instruments
(i) Non-Derivative Financial Assets

All of the Corporation’s non-derivative financial assets are ciassified as [oans and receivables.
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Such financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent fo initial recognition, loans and receivables
are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate metheod, less any impairment
losses.

The Corporation recognizes loans and receivables on the date they are originated.

The Corporation derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transfeired.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

2,

Significant Accounting Policies / coniinued

Financial Instruments / continued

{ii) Non-Derivative Financial Liabilities
All of the Corporation's non-derivative financial liabilities are classified as other financial
liabilities. Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, and trade and other
payables. Such financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value less any directly
atiributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The Corporation recognized other financial liabilities on the trade date, which is the date that the
Corporation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Corporation derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire.

It is management's opinion that the facility is not exposed to significant interest, currency or
credit risks arising from its non-derivative financial instruments.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations Not Yet Effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published by the IASB but are not yet effective, and

.. have not been adopted early by the Corporation.

Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Corperation’s
accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.

Certain other new standards and interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have material
impact on the Corporation’s financial statements and therefore have not been described here.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 replaces accounting requirements infroduced more than 30 years ago that are no longer
considered suitable and is a major revision of the way in which companies account for leases. The
effective date of IFRS 16 is January 1, 2019. The Corporation is in the process of evaluating the
impact of the new standard.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

2018 2017
Net Book Net Book
Cost  Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $
Land 188,253 e 188,253 5,168

Generating Station Building
» Lower Falls 17,640,117 3,654,087 13,986,030 14,253,987
» Upper Falls 4,425,064 2,427,702 1,997,362 2,107,988
Millfall Dam 2,053,453 20,536 2,032,917 --
Paving, Landscaping and Fencing 93,576 91,455 2,121 6,367
Generating Equipment 1,870,659 784,921 1,085,738 1,079,826
Substation 119,510 110,780 8,730 10,909
Vehicles 36,946 36,946 - 1,428
Signage 10,890 10,890
Safety Equipment 18,642 16,721 1,921 3,075
Office Equipment 68,907 62,928 5,979 9,536
Water Rights 27,452 27,452 - -
Computer Equipment 47,551 47,551 -—
Leasehold Improvements 275,702 08,188 177,514 200,223
26,876,722 7,390,157 19,486,565 17,678,507

Additions during the year were as follows:

2018 2017
$ $
Land » Millfall Dam 183,085 —
Millfall Dam 2,053,453 -—-
Generation Station » Lower Falls 170,908 44,012
Generating Equipment » plant automation 49,953 25,500
» hawk 14,845 -—
> crane 32,575 -
Total Net Additions 2,504,819 69,512

The Corporation is under coniract to purchase and transfer the Millfall Dam land from the Municipality
of Mississippi Mills in 2019. 1t is the Board's view that they are beneficial owners of the land.

4. Bank Indebtedness

The Corporation’s financial agreement with its bank provides for an operating credit facility of up to
$200,000 to finance expenses, pending receipt of income. Interest on funds drawn is charged at the
bank's prime rate. As at December 31, 2018, there was $Nil {2017 $Nil) drawn on the facility.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

5. Long Term Debt

2018 2017
$ $
Ontario Infrastructure Projects Corporation debenture (5.2023%),
repayable in blended monthly payments of $92,673.08, secured by a
general security agreement covering all assets, due October 2040, 14,494,566 14,842,703
Bank of Montreal Loan (3.5400%), repayable in blended monthly
payments of $17,673.50, secured by a general security agreement, due
November 2028. 1,768,116 -
Bank of Montreal Loan {2.5100%), repayable in monthly payments of
$5,531.59, secured by a general security agreement, due March 2020. 648,668 898,101
Bank of Montreal Loan {2.9400%), repayable in monthly payments of
$2,717.53, secured by a general security agreement, due March 2021, 312171 335,447
Bank of Montreal Loan (3.3900%), repayable in monthly payments of
$2,779.04, secured by a general security agresment, due March 2022, 312,827 335,567
Municipality of Mississippi Mills promissory note, with no fixed terms of
repayment, the term and the interest rate to be renegotiated annually
between the Board of Directors and corporate shareholder. Intersst
accrued for 2018 was at a rate of 5.0000% (2017 5.0000%). 2,388,653 2,388,653
19,925,001 18,600,471
Less: current partion of long term borrowings 616,369 444,715
19,308,632 18,155,756

Principal payments falls due as follows:

$

2019 616,369
2020 1,189,935
2021 858,461
2022 837,939
2023 and thereafter 16,422,297
19,925,001

Interest on promissory note is calculated annually and payable annually to the shareholders.

63



Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

6. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes

Statutory Canadian Federal and Provincial tax rates for the current year comprise 15.0% (2017 15.0%)
for Federal corporate tax and 11.5% (2017 11.5%) for corporate tax in Ontario. The PlLs expense
varies from amounts which would be computed by applying the Corporation's combined statutory
income tax rate as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Income Before Provision for PlLs 215,785 1,492,913

Statutory Canadian provincial tax rate {blended) 26.50% 26.50%

Provision for PILs at statutory rate 57,183 385,622

Decrease in Income Tax Resulting From: {14,334) (57,501}

Small business deduction - (178,353)
Non-capital loss carryforward used

Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization {27,965) (5,635)

Charitable donations from Schedule 2 s (1,458)

Total Provision 14,884 152,675

Effective Tax Rate 6.90% 10.23%

The change in the deferred tax liability is as follows:

2018 2017

$ $

Opening Balance, January 1 447,600 267,000

Recognized in Statement of Comprehensive Income 27,400 180,800

Closing Balance, December 31 475,000 447,600

Deferred tax liabilities are attributable to property, plant and equipment.

The Corporation has losses for tax purposes to carry forward against future income in the amount of
$Nil (2017 $Nil).

7. Gross Revenue Charge

The Corporation is liable to pay a charge based on their gross generation of kilowatts hours to the
Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation. The Corporation has applied with the Ministry of Natural
Resources for a deduction under the Electricity Act 1998 to waive this charge for 10 years. In 2018,
the application was approved and the charge was waived effective May 9, 2010 for a ten year period
ending May 9, 2020.
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Mississippi River Power Corporation
Notes to the Financial Statements

December 31, 2018

8.

Related Party Balances on Transactions
The Ultimate Parent

The commeon shares of Mississippi River Power Corporation are owned by the Municipality of
Mississippi Mills which constitutes local government. Consequently, the Corporation is exempt from
some of the general disclosure requirements of IAS 24 with relation to transactions with government-
related parties, and has applied the government-related disclosure requirements.

Transactions with Related Parties

The following summarizes the Corporation’s related party transactions for the year. These transactions
are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange value (the amount of
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties), which approximates the arm’s length
equivalent for sales of product or provision of service.

During the year, the Corporation paid $119,433 (2017 $119,433) of interest on long term and short term
debts and $36,000 (2017 $36,000) of rent to its shareholder, the Municipality of Mississippi Mills. The
Corporation also purchased land from its shareholder, the Municipality of Mississippi Mills, in the
amount of $151,225. The Carporation owes its shareholder, the Municipality of Mississippi Mills,
$2,850,744 (2017 $2,544,086) at the year end.

Commitments

The Corporation leases office premises from the Municipality of Mississippi Mills under the terms of an
operating lease at a monthly cost of $3,000. The lease has a term of 10 years, with an expiration date
of September 30, 2023, with an option to renew for one further period of 10 years, upon revised terms.

The Corporation leases Metcalfe Geo Heritage Park from the Municipality of Mississippi Mills under the
terms of an operating lease at an annual cost of $1.00. The lease has a term of 20 years with an
expiration date of December 31, 2033, with an option to rensw for one further period of 20 years, upon
the same terms.

10.

Contingent Liabilities

The nature of municipal activities is such that there may be litigation pending or in prospect at any time.
With respect to claims as at December 31, 2018, management maintains that the Corporation has valid
defences and appropriate insurance coverage in place. In the event any claims are successful,
management believes that such claims are not expected to have a material effect on the Corporation’s
financial position.
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11.

Risk Management

In the normal course of operations, the Corporation is exposed to a varisty of financial risks which are
actively managed by the Corporation.

The Corporation’s financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable and accounts payable and
accrued liabilities. The fair values of cash, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate
their carrying values because of their expected short term maturity and freatment on normal trade
terms.

The Corporation’s expasure to and management of risk has not changed materially from December 31,
2017.

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the entities to which the Corporation provides services fo may
experience difficulty and be unable to fulfill their obligations. The Corporation is exposed ta financial
risk that arises from the credit quality of the entities to which it provides services. The Corporation does
not have a significant exposure to any individual customer or counter party. As a result, the
requirement for credit risk reiated reserves for accounts receivable is minimal.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that the value of, or cash flows related to, a financial
instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed
to financial risk that arises from the interest rate differentials between the market interest rate and the
rates on its cash and cash equivalents and operating loan. Changes in variable interest rates could
cause unanticipated fluctuations in the Corporation’s operating results.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk thaf the Corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they fall due. The

Corporation requires working capital to meet day-to-day operating activities. Management expects that
the Corporation’s cash flows from operating acfivities will be sufficient to meet these requirements.

12

Capital Management

The Corporation considers its capital to be its capital stock and retained earnings. The Corporation’s
main objectives when managing capital are to: i} ensure sufficient liquidity to maintain and improve its
electricity distribution system, support its financial obligations and execute its operating and strategic
plans, ii) minimize the cost of capital while taking into consideration current and future industry, market
and economic risks and conditions, and iii) provide an adequate return to its shareholders.

The Corporation relies on its cash flow from operations to fund its dividend distributions to its
shareholders.
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13. Budget Figures
Mississippi River Power Corporation reviews its operating and capital budgets each year. The
approved operating budget for 2018 is included in the budget figures presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income but they are not subject to audit.
14. Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel during the year was
as follows:
2018 2017
$ $
Management and Director Remuneration 144,252 137,465
Other Leng Term Benefits 12,971 12,768
157,223 150,233
15. Lost Revenue Recuperation
During 2012 there was a malfunction within the generating station, after which no revenues were able
to be generated until repairs were completed in 2013. The Corporation received partial payments in
2013, but there remains monies outstanding. Management has provided their best estimate of lost
revenues to be recuperated from other parties responsible and these amounts are included in accounts
receivable.
16. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorized for issue on March
4, 2019.
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